
 
Telephone Enquiries: Holly Townsley, Democratic Services, 01254 380184 
Email:  rachael.calvert@hyndburnbc.gov.uk 
Published on Date Not Specified 

Page 1 of 2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Cabinet Committee 
(Street Naming) 
 
Wednesday, 6th August, 2025 at 3.30 pm, 
Scaitcliffe House, Ormerod Street, Accrington 
 
Membership 
 
Chair: Councillor Scott Brerton 
 
Councillors Melissa Fisher and Clare Pritchard 
 

 

A G E N D A 
 
 

1   Apologies for Absence, Substitutions, Declarations of Interest and Dispensations   
 
 

2   Minutes of the Last Meeting  (Pages 3 - 4) 
 

The minutes of the meeting Cabinet Street Naming Committee held on the 21st of 
May 2025 were submitted for approval as a correct record.  
 
Recommended – That the minutes be received and approved as a correct 
record.  
 

3   Street Naming Proposal  (Pages 5 - 12) 
 

To seek approval for the naming of the following street for a new-build residential 
development located off Mary Street, Rishton. The former site was called Albert 
Mill.  

 

Public Document Pack



Page 2 of 2 

 

 Ernest Marsden Close 
 
Recommended - That the street name is approved as the single street name 
suggested above. 
 

4   Update Sheet   
 

Royal Mail have addressed the consultee request and are satisfied that neither 
Albert Mill Close nor Ernest Marsden Close will cause any issues with the postal 
service.  
 
Recommended – That members note the update sheet for informational 
purposes.  
 

 
 



 
1 

 
CABINET COMMITTEE (STREET NAMING) 

 

 
Wednesday, 21st May, 2025 

 
Present:  Councillor Scott Brerton (in the Chair),  

Councillors Stewart Eaves and Ethan Rawcliffe 
 

Apologies  

  

 
18 Appointment of Chair 

 
Councillor Scott Brerton was appointed as the Chair of the Cabinet Committee (Street 
Naming). 
 

19 Apologies for Absence, Declarations of Interest, Dispensations and Substitutions 
 
 

20 Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 
The Minutes of the Cabinet Committee (Street Naming) meeting on the 11th of July 2024 
were submitted for approval as a correct record. 
 
Resolved – That the Minutes be received and approved as a correct record.  
 

21 Street Naming Proposal - Chancel Gardens, Mount St. James, Knuzden 
 
The report was presented by Mr David Turner, Principle Engineer who detailed the 
application for 7 street names for a residential development located off Mount St. James, 
Knuzden, Oswaldtwistle. 
 
The 7 names proposed were as follows; 

 Poplar Drive 

 Willowbank Close 

 Fernwood Close 

 Brackenridge Close 

 Foxglove Close 

 Maplebrook Close 

 Hazelcroft Close  
 
The names were selected in accordance with the Councils Street Naming and Numbering 
Policy, which is summarised in the report. The proposed names incorporate Tree Species 
in their titles.  
 
Consultations were undertaken and no objections raised to the proposed names.  
 
Resolved – That the 7 listed street names were approved by unanimous vote.  
 

 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 
 
 

 

 
2 

Signed:…………………………………………… 
 

Date: …………….………………………………………… 
 

Chair of the meeting 
At which the minutes were confirmed 

 
 

Page 4



Page 1 of 4 
 

REPORT TO: Street Naming Committee 

DATE: 04/06/2025 

PORTFOLIO: Councillor Scott Brerton (Business, Growth and 
Sustainability)  

REPORT AUTHOR: Ayaz Mahmood, Senior ICT Officer 

TITLE OF REPORT: Street Naming Proposal – Former Albert Mill Site 

EXEMPT REPORT  
(Local Government 
Act 1972, Schedule 
12A)  

No Not applicable 

  

KEY DECISION: No If yes, date of publication:  

 
  
1. Purpose of Report 
 
1.1 To seek approval for the naming of the following street for a new-build residential 

development located off Mary Street, Rishton. The former site was called Albert Mill.  
 

 Ernest Marsden Close 
 
2. Recommendations  
 
2.1 That the street name is approved as the single street name suggested above. 
 
 
3. Reasons for Recommendations and Background 
 
3.1 An application for street names and postal numbers for new properties has been 

received by the Council’s ICT Services (see Appendix 1). The application relates to a 
residential development comprising of 30 new dwellings on the development site 
located off Mary Street, Rishton. A copy of the site plan is attached as Appendix 2. The 
developer Alderley Partnerships has been granted Planning Permission in respect of 
Application 11/24/0347.  
Consultation with the councillors Dawson and Walsh lead to the suggestion of the 
recommended street name Ernest Marsden Close as the name of a Rishton born 
scientist who helped discover the atom.  

 
 
 
4. Alternative Options considered and Reasons for Rejection 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Page 2 of 4 
 

 
4.1 None 
 
 
5. Consultations 
 
5.1  The developer Alderley Partnerships were contacted and consulted on the previous 

custodian suggested street name Albert Mill Close. 
 
5.2  Councillors Bernard Dawson, Ethan Rawcliffe and Kate Walsh, as ward members where 

the development is located, were consulted via email on the street name suggestion of 
Albert Mill Close. 
 

5.3  Alderley Partnership have responded via email in acceptance of Albert Mill Close.  
 

5.4  Councillor Kate Walsh feels the street name Albert Mill Close will cause issues with postal 
workers as Albert Street is nearby. Cllr Walsh has mentioned the Mill operated for less 
than 30 years in the cotton industry with the older and larger Mills being located along the 
canal for transportation access. The companies involved in the Mill already have a 
significant number of streets and other areas named after them. Councillors Walsh and 
Dawson have suggested a counter name “Ernest Marsden Way” as this is the name of a 
scientist born in Rishton who helped discover the atom. Another suggested name is 
“Poplins Close” as the Mill produced Poplins and sounds unique according to Cllr Walsh.  

 
5.5  Advised Councillor Walsh, the name Albert Mill Close was recommended by our previous 

custodian and the development were happy with the name. The name suggests 'Close' at 
the end of the name as it leads of Albert St. 

 
5.6  Councillor Walsh clarified the street in question leads off Mary St not Albert St.  

 
5.7  Advised Councillor Walsh the proposed road will feature a cul-de-sac. In accordance with 

our naming conventions. We can use Chase, Close or Court. See 7.1 
 

5.8  Councillor Walsh does not mind what comes after the street name.  
 

5.9  The emergency services and Royal Mail were consulted on the suggested Street name 
and the suggested names from Councillor Walsh. 

 
5.10 Mrs Sarah Smith MP and several constituents have shown their support for the street 

name to be named after Sir Ernest Marsden by addressing a letter to David Welsby. 
 
5.11 North West Ambulance Service responded stating neither Albert Mill Close nor Ernest 

Marsden Close will cause any difficulty in finding the street.  
 
5.12 No response from Royal Mail, Fire and Police on the suggested street names.  
 
 
6. Implications 
 

Page 6



Page 3 of 4 
 

Financial implications (including 
any future financial commitments 
for the Council) 
 

None 

Legal and human rights 
implications 
 

None 

Assessment of risk 
 

None 

Equality and diversity implications 
A Customer First Analysis should be 
completed in relation to policy 
decisions and should be attached as 
an appendix to the report.  
 

None 

 
 
7. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985: 

List of Background Papers  
 

7.1 The Council’s Street Naming and Numbering Policy sets out the following criteria for 

the naming of streets: 

 

 General Naming Convention 

 No street name should start with “The”; 

 Street names cannot be duplicated within District; 

 Street names should not be difficult to pronounce or awkward to spell; 

 Names of living persons will not be allowed; 

 The street names should, where possible, reflect the history or geography of the 

site or area; 

 Street names that could be construed as advertising will not be allowed; 

 Street names that could be considered offensive will not be allowed; 

 Subsidiary names (i.e. a row of buildings within an already named road being 

called Terrace) should not be used; 

 

All pedestrian ways should have the following suffixes: 

 Walk 

 Path 

 Way 

 

Suffix Applicable Road Type 

Avenue  Any road 

Chase  Cul-de-sac 

Close  Cul-de-sac 

Court  Cul-de-sac 

Crescent  Crescent shaped road 

Page 7

http://hyntranet/index.php?option=com_remository&Itemid=80&func=startdown&id=1407


Page 4 of 4 
 

Drive  Residential road 

Gardens  Any road, provided there is no confusion with any local open space 

Green  A courtyard, provided there is no confusion with any local open space 

Grove  Small road or cul-de-sac 

Hill  For hill roads only 

Lane  Any road 
 
 
8. Freedom of Information 
 
8.1 The report does not contain exempt information under the Local Government Act 1972, 
 Schedule 12A and all information can be disclosed under the Freedom of Information 
 Act 2000. 
 
 
 
 

Page 8



TP

MW

144.65

144
.44

144
.28

143
.75

143
.56

143
.38

14
4
.0
7

14
4
.2
7

14
4
.5
0

14
4
.5
6

14
4
.6
1

14
4
.5
2

14
4
.5
6

14
4
.3
8

14
4
.4
4

144
.64

144
.70

144
.54

144
.05

143
.90

143
.84

143
.74

144
.22

14
4
.7
1

14
4
.9
1

14
5
.2
4

14
5
.3
2

14
5
.10

14
4
.9
6

14
4
.9
1

145.45

145.45

(146.80)

143
.21

143.24

14
3
.2
9

14
3
.4
4

14
3
.6
0

14
3
.6
4

143
.67

143.66

14
3
.5
4

14
3
.4
3

14
3
.2
9

14
3
.19

14
3
.1
1

143
.00

14
3
.8
8

14
3
.8
5

14
3
.8
6

143.89 143
.90

14
3
.9
1

14
3
.9
2

143
.99

143
.96

14
3
.9
9

14
3
.9
1

143
.87

144
.05

144
.38

14
4
.5
4

14
4
.5
6

14
4
.6
3144.38

144.40

144.14

144.11

143.94

144.12

143.90

143.94

143.93

143.93

143.93

143.89

143.84

143.85

143.85

143.93

143.89

143.89

143.84

143.80

143.83

143.85

143.86

143.90

144.58

144.54
144.57

144.54
144.55

144.55

144.54

144.51

144.51

144.41

144.47

144.50

144.54

144.54

144.23

144.19

144.28

144.35

144.24

144.12

144.13

144.17

144.33

144.38

144.38

144.46

144.48

144.50

144.44

144.48

144.47

144.33

144.37

144.29

144.20

144.03

143.96

143.91

144.49

144.51

144.49

144.38

144.50

144.49

144.49

144.55

144.54 144.
62

14
4
.6
7

14
4
.6
8

14
4
.6
4

144
.65

144
.61

144
.64

144.48

144.43

144.45

144.46

144.49

144.50

144.45

144.43

144.53

144.50

144.50

144.44

144.44

144.38144.45

144.43

144.53

144.48

144.49

144.49

144.46

144.47

144.48

144.56

144.56

144.55

144.55

144.55

144.56144.57

144.57

144.55

144.53

144.59

144.52

144.54

144.57

144.53

144.55

144.39

144.48

144.56

144.51

144.61

144.60

144.53

144.52

144.58

144.58

144.57

144.43

144.55

144.54

144.55

144.57

144.57

144.56

144.74

144.72

144.70
144.87

144.67

144.63

144.73

144.66
144.67

144.54

144.52

144.67

144.60

144.26

144.40

144.22

144.37

144.40

144.41

144.38

144.24

144.00

143.89

143.82

144.03

144.22

144.30

144.34

144.38

144.09

144.48

144.57

144.56

FH

Bric
k W

all

Bric
k W

all

B
ric
k
 
W
a
ll

B
ric
k
 
W
a
ll

B
ric
k
 
W
a
ll

G144.81

G144.18

G143.75

G143.76

G143.16

G143.22

MH
CL143.60

MH

MH

CL143.83

CL143.92

MH
CL145.19

MH
CL144.72

MH
CL144.34

IC
CL143.90

IC

IC

IC

CL143.54

CL143.53

CL143.59

Dense Vegetation

Dense Vegetation

Dense Vegetation

Dense Vegetation

Conc

Conc

Tarmac

Block Paving

Block Paving

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Concrete

M
e
sh
 
F
e
n
c
e

M
e
sh
 
F
e
n
c
e

M
e
s
h
 
F
e
n
c
e

21928

Plot 1

3-Bed

Plot 2

3-Bed

Plot 3

2-Bed

Plot 4

2-Bed

Plot 5

3-Bed

Plot 6

3-Bed

Plot 9

2-Bed

Plot 10

2-Bed

Plot 13

3-Bed

Plot 14

3-Bed

Plot 7

2-Bed

Plot 8

2-Bed

Plot 11

2-Bed

Plot 12

2-Bed

Plot 15

2-Bed

Plot 16

2-Bed

Plot 18

3-Bed

Plot 17

3-Bed

Plot 20

2-Bed

Plot 19

2-Bed

Plot 22

3-Bed

Plot 21

3-Bed

Plot 24

3-Bed

Plot 23

3-Bed

Plot 26

2-Bed

Plot 25

2-Bed

Plot 27

3-Bed
Plot 28

3-Bed

Plot 30

2-Bed

Plot 29

2-Bed

2
2

1
6

0

1
2

0
9

7

1
2

0
1

8

22306

108

2

1

3

4

21000

1
6

2
1

5

Attenuation Tank

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE BY 
CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION

In line with current industry norms, our Professional Indemnity 
Insurance specifically excludes Fire Safety. Our clients are requested 
to ensure that they have their own adequate cover arrangements 
regarding all Fire Safety related liabilities for their properties. 

DRAWN BY: CHECKED 
BY:

DATE: SCALE @ A1:

JOB NO: DRAWING NO: REV
:

Elizabeth House  486 Didsbury Road  Heaton Mersey  Stockport  SK4 3BS
0161 443 1221 info@bernardtaylor.co.uK  www.btparchitects.co.uk

CLIENT:

PROJECT:

DESCRIPTION:

STATUS CODE:

FILE IDENTIFIER:

PURPOSE OF ISSUE:

1 : 200

F

Alderley Group

Mary Street, Rishton

Proposed Site Plan

OM MA 15/10/24

4413 205A

MS-BTP-00-SP-DR-A-4413_205.F

Construction

1 : 200

05 Proposed Site Plan

Total amount 30

House Type NumberBeds

2B4P 162

143

Unit Area m²

79

84

N

0

SCALE 1:

1086422

m200

3B4P - Part M4(2)

Schedule of Accommodation

Rev Date Int Description

A 12.11.24 TP Plots 5 & 6 reduced to allow for 12m

seperation distance for plot 16

B 13.11.24 TP Maintenance strip added around turning

head following highways comments

C 18.02.24 DR Road layout updated in-line with engineers

drawings

D 24.03.25 OM 2-Bed with Gable window colour revised

E 15.04.25 MA Car parking spaces to plots 25 - 28 amended

to move plot 25 car parking away from wall.

F 13.05.25 OM Drawing issued as Construction issue

 
E

rnest M
arsden C

lose
 

 

1 

2 

3 
4 

5 

6 

7 
8 

9 
10 

11 
12 

13 
14 

15 

16 

24 

23 

22 

21 

20 
19 

18 

17 

25 62  
72

822930

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



TP

MW

144.65

144
.44

144
.28

143
.75

143
.56

143
.38

14
4
.0
7

14
4
.2
7

14
4
.5
0

14
4
.5
6

14
4
.6
1

14
4
.5
2

14
4
.5
6

14
4
.3
8

14
4
.4
4

144.64

144
.64

144
.70

144
.54

144
.05

143
.90

143
.84

143
.74

144
.22

14
4
.7
1

14
4
.9
1

14
5
.2
4

14
5
.3
2

14
5
.10

14
4
.9
6

14
4
.9
1

145.45

145.45

(146.80)

143
.21

143.24

14
3
.2
9

14
3
.4
4

14
3
.6
0

14
3
.6
4

143
.67

143.66

14
3
.5
4

14
3
.4
3

14
3
.2
9

14
3
.19

14
3
.1
1

143
.00

14
3
.8
8

14
3
.8
5

14
3
.8
6

143.89 143
.90

14
3
.9
1

14
3
.9
2

143
.99

143
.96

14
3
.9
9

14
3
.9
1

143
.87

144
.05

144
.38

14
4
.5
4

14
4
.5
6

14
4
.6
3144.38

144.40

144.14

144.11

143.94

144.12

143.90

143.94

143.93

143.93

143.93

143.89

143.84

143.85

143.85

143.93

143.89

143.89

143.84

143.80

143.83

143.85

143.86

143.90

144.58

144.54
144.57

144.54
144.55

144.55

144.54

144.51

144.51

144.41

144.47

144.50

144.54

144.54

144.49

144.23

144.19

144.28

144.35

144.24

144.12

144.13

144.17

144.33

144.38

144.38

144.46

144.48

144.50

144.44

144.48

144.47 144.33

144.37

144.29

144.20

144.03

143.96

143.91

144.49

144.51

144.49

144.38

144.50

144.49

144.49

144.55

144.54 144.
62

14
4
.6
7

14
4
.6
8

14
4
.6
4

144
.65

144
.61

144
.64

144.48

144.43

144.45

144.46

144.49

144.50

144.45

144.43

144.53

144.50

144.50

144.44

144.44

144.38144.45

144.43

144.53

144.48

144.49

144.49

144.46

144.47

144.48

144.56

144.56

144.55

144.55

144.55

144.56144.57

144.57

144.57

144.55

144.53

144.59

144.52

144.54

144.57

144.53

144.55

144.39

144.48

144.56

144.51

144.61

144.60

144.53

144.52

144.58

144.58

144.57

144.43

144.55

144.54

144.55

144.57

144.57

144.56

144.74

144.72

144.70
144.87

144.67

144.63

144.73

144.66
144.67

144.54

144.52

144.67

144.60

144.26

144.40

144.22

144.37

144.40

144.41

144.38

144.24

144.00

143.89

143.82

144.03

144.22

144.30

144.34

144.38

144.09

144.48

144.57

144.56

FH

Bric
k W

all

Bric
k W

all

B
ric
k
 
W
a
ll

B
ric
k
 
W
a
ll

B
ric
k
 
W
a
ll

G144.81

G144.18

G143.75

G143.76

G143.16

G143.22

MH
CL143.60

MH

MH

CL143.83

CL143.92

MH
CL145.19

MH
CL144.72

MH
CL144.34

IC
CL143.90

IC

IC

IC

CL143.54

CL143.53

CL143.59

Dense Vegetation

Dense Vegetation

Dense Vegetation

Dense Vegetation

Conc

Conc

Tarmac

Block Paving

Block Paving

Grass

Grass

Grass

Grass

Concrete

M
e
sh
 
F
e
n
c
e

M
e
sh
 
F
e
n
c
e

M
e
s
h
 
F
e
n
c
e

21928

Plot 1

3-Bed

Plot 2

3-Bed

Plot 3

2-Bed

Plot 4

2-Bed

Plot 5

3-Bed

Plot 6

3-Bed

Plot 9

2-Bed

Plot 10

2-Bed

Plot 13

3-Bed

Plot 14

3-Bed

Plot 7

2-Bed

Plot 8

2-Bed

Plot 11

2-Bed

Plot 12

2-Bed

Plot 15

2-Bed

Plot 16

2-Bed

Plot 18

3-Bed

Plot 17

3-Bed

Plot 20

2-Bed

Plot 19

2-Bed

Plot 22

3-Bed

Plot 21

3-Bed

Plot 24

3-Bed

Plot 23

3-Bed

Plot 26

2-Bed

Plot 25

2-Bed

Plot 27

3-Bed
Plot 28

3-Bed

Plot 30

2-Bed

Plot 29

2-Bed

2
2

1
6

0

1
2

0
9

7

1
2

0
1

8

22306

108

2

1

3

4

21000

1
6

2
1

5

Attenuation Tank

DO NOT SCALE FROM THIS DRAWING
ALL DIMENSIONS MUST BE CHECKED ON SITE BY 
CONTRACTOR PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION

In line with current industry norms, our Professional Indemnity 
Insurance specifically excludes Fire Safety. Our clients are requested 
to ensure that they have their own adequate cover arrangements 
regarding all Fire Safety related liabilities for their properties. 

DRAWN BY: CHECKED 
BY:

DATE: SCALE @ A1:

JOB NO: DRAWING NO: REV
:

Elizabeth House  486 Didsbury Road  Heaton Mersey  Stockport  SK4 3BS
0161 443 1221 info@bernardtaylor.co.uK  www.btparchitects.co.uk

CLIENT:

PROJECT:

DESCRIPTION:

STATUS CODE:

FILE IDENTIFIER:

PURPOSE OF ISSUE:

1 : 200

F

Alderley Group

Mary Street, Rishton

Proposed Site Plan

OM MA 15/10/24

4413 205A

MS-BTP-00-SP-DR-A-4413_205.F

Construction

1 : 200

05 Proposed Site Plan

Total amount 30

House Type NumberBeds

2B4P 162

143

Unit Area m²

79

84

N

0

SCALE 1:

1086422

m200

3B4P - Part M4(2)

Schedule of Accommodation

Rev Date Int Description

A 12.11.24 TP Plots 5 & 6 reduced to allow for 12m

seperation distance for plot 16

B 13.11.24 TP Maintenance strip added around turning

head following highways comments

C 18.02.24 DR Road layout updated in-line with engineers

drawings

D 24.03.25 OM 2-Bed with Gable window colour revised

E 15.04.25 MA Car parking spaces to plots 25 - 28 amended

to move plot 25 car parking away from wall.

F 13.05.25 OM Drawing issued as Construction issue

 
E

rnest M
arsden C

lose
 

1 3 
5 7 

9 11 

2 

4 

6 
8 

10 

12 

14 
16 

18 
20 

22 
24 

26 
28 

30 

32 

13 

15 

17 

19 

21 
23 

25 

27 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Last Meeting
	Minutes

	3 Street Naming Proposal
	SN619 Former Albert Mill Site - Proposed Site Plan Even and Odds
	Sheets
	205 - Proposed Site Plan


	SN619 Former Albert Mill Site - Proposed Site Plan Sequence
	Sheets
	205 - Proposed Site Plan




